

# Wexford County

# BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

# Gary Taylor, Chair

# **NOTICE OF MEETING**

The Wexford County Board of Commissioners will hold a regular meeting on Wednesday, March 15, 2023, beginning at 4:00 p.m. in the Commissioners Room, third floor of the Historic Courthouse, located at 437 E. Division St., Cadillac, Michigan.

# TENTATIVE AGENDA

- A. CALL TO ORDER
- B. ROLL CALL
- C. PLEDGE OF ALLIEGIANCE
- D. ADDITIONS/DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA
- E. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA
- F. PUBLIC COMMENT

Designated for topics on the agenda only.

- G. EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION
- H. PRESENTATION AND REPORTS
- I. CONSENT AGENDA

The purpose of the consent agenda is to expedite business by grouping non-controversial items together to be dealt with by one Commission motion without discussion. Any member of the Commission may ask that any item on the consent agenda be removed therefrom and placed elsewhere for full discussion. Such requests will be automatically respected. If any item is not removed from the consent agenda, the action noted on the agenda is approved by motion of the Commission to adopt the consent agenda.

| 1. Approval of the March | 1, 2023, Regular Meeting Minutes1 |
|--------------------------|-----------------------------------|
|                          |                                   |

J. AGENDA ITEMS

K.

| 1. Resolution 23-09 Narcan Vending Machines at DHD #10 (Rec & Blding 03/02/2023) | 4 |
|--|---|
| 2. Advanced Correctional Healthcare Agreement (Finance 03/09/2023)               | 7 |
| ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT   |   |

## L. CORRESPONDENCE

| 1. Parks and Recreation Plan Survey |
|-------------------------------------|
|-------------------------------------|

# M. PUBLIC COMMENT

Open for any public comments.

- N. LIAISON REPORT
- O. BOARD COMMENTS
- P. CHAIR COMMENTS
- Q. ADJOURN

## WEXFORD COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

Regular Meeting \* Wednesday, March 1, 2023

Meeting called to order at 4:00 p.m. by Chairman Taylor.

Roll Call: Present- Commissioners Jason Mitchell, Ben Townsend, Kathy Adams, Michael Bush, Julie Theobald, Jason Baughan, Brian Potter and Gary Taylor.

Absent- Mike Musta

Pledge of Allegiance.

Additions/Deletions to the Agenda-None

#### Approval of the Agenda

**<u>MOTION</u>** by Comm Theobald, seconded by Comm Bush to approve the agenda, as amended.

All in Favor.

Public Comment- None

**Employee Recognition-** None.

Presentation and Reports- None.

#### **Consent Agenda**

 Approval of the February 15, 2023 Regular Meeting Minutes <u>MOTION</u> by Comm Theobald, seconded by Comm Bush to approve the Consent Agenda.

All in favor.

#### **Agenda Items**

1. Truck Bed Mount Unit – Animal Control

<u>MOTION</u> by Comm Adams, seconded by Comm Bush to approve the purchase of the Animal Control Truck Bed Mount Unit in the amount of \$23,405.00, to be paid out of the donated funds.

**Roll Call: Motion passed 8-0.** 

2. Budget Amendment

| Amendments to the 2023 Budget Log |                      |                            |              |         |  |  |
|-----------------------------------|----------------------|----------------------------|--------------|---------|--|--|
| BOC Meeting Date                  | Acct                 | Acct Description           | Revenue      | Expense |  |  |
| 2023-03-01                        | 225-000-390.04       | Restricted Donation        | \$ 23,405.00 |         |  |  |
|                                   | 225-000-962.06       | G.Phelps Pets Expenditures | \$ 23,405.00 |         |  |  |
| Comment/Reasoning                 | : Animal Control Tru | ck Box                     |              |         |  |  |

# Wexford County Board of Commissioners

**MOTION** by Comm Theobald, seconded by Comm Bush to approve the presented budget amendment dated March 01, 2023.

## Roll Call: Motion passed 8-0.

3. Appointment to the Northern Lakes Community Mental Health Authority Board MOTION by Comm Theobald, seconded by Comm Potter to approve the recommendation from the Human Resource/Public Safety Committee to appoint Ms. Carol Blake to the Northern Lakes Community Mental Authority Board effective April 01, 2023, with a term ending March 31, 2026.

## **Roll Call: Motion passed 8-0.**

4. Police Academy Sponsorship

MOTION by Comm Baughan, seconded by Comm Theobald to approve sponsoring up to five cadets at the next academy.

## **Roll Call: Motion passed 8-0.**

## Administrator's Report-

Administrator Porterfield finalized the purchase of one of the lots at the jail, still waiting on closing date for the other two lots. Listening session for Community Mental Health was held 03/01/2023, good connections were made by groups that attended. This is something that we will do quarterly or semi-annually to keep the communication going between the groups. We are still waiting on our opioid money, still waiting on communication from Mac on what we can use the funds for. The deed was received for the Health Dept., it has been paid off. Monies from that building will now be coming to the County instead of the State.

## Correspondence- None.

## Public Comments- None

## Liaison Reports-

Commissioner Townsend also attended the listening session for Community Mental Health. He mentioned that it was an excellent discussion between the groups that attended.

Commissioner Adams also attended the listening session for Community Mental Health and mentioned that is was very encouraging to see the different groups milling together.

Commissioner Potter received information from the DDA, that they will be receiving a blight grant from the State for the demolition of the Pioneer Apartments, which will cover majority of the cost. He attended the MAC Judicial Conference and a plan was laid out for what the committee will be working on for the year. Current litigation on how costs will be assigned to the defendants and paid out to the courts. Commissioner Potter asked that a committee be formed to address the deficit in the Prosecutor's office, after meeting with our Prosecutor.

Commissioner Taylor MAC Environmental Committee meeting and they are getting ready to update their platform for the Spring Conference.

## **Board Comments-**

Commissioner Townsend mentioned that there will be a meeting for the Wexford County Historical Society on Tuesday March 14, 2023 at 5:30 pm.

#### Chairman's Comments-

Thanked everyone for attending the meeting.

<u>Adjourn</u>

MOTION by Comm Theobald, seconded by Comm Potter to adjourn at 4:11 p.m.

All in favor.

Gary Taylor, Chairperson

Karen Maury, Chief Deputy Clerk

## **BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS AGENDA ITEM**

| FROM:             | Recreation and Building Committee   |  |
|-------------------|---|--|
| FOR MEETING DATE: | March 15, 2023  |  |
| SUBJECT:          | Resolution 23-09 Narcan Vending Machine at the District Health Department #10 |  |

## SUMMARY OF ITEM TO BE PRESENTED:

The District Health Department #10 has asked the Board to approve the placement of a Naloxone (Narcan) Box at the Health Department Building. This would increase the accessibility of Narcan in the Community.

#### **RECOMMENDATION:**

The Recreation and Building Committee forwards a recommendation to the full board to approve the placement of a Narcan box at the Health Department and the corresponding attorney approved Resolution 23-09. Minutes of a regular meeting of the Wexford County Board of Commissioners, held at the Wexford County Courthouse, 437 E. Division St., Cadillac, Michigan, on the fifteenth day of March 2023 at 4:00 p.m.

PRESENT:\_\_\_\_\_\_ABSENT:\_\_\_\_\_

The following preamble and resolution were offered by Commissioner\_\_\_\_\_\_ and

supported by Commissioner\_\_\_\_\_.

# **RESOLUTION NO. 23-09**

# RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING DISTRICT HEALTH DEPARTMENT NUMBER 10 REQUEST FOR PLACEMENT OF NARCAN DISTRIBUTION BOX AT COBB STREET PROPERTY

- WHEREAS, District Health Department #10 is a district health department which provides public health services under Michigan Public Health Code to ten counties including Crawford, Kalkaska, Lake, Manistee, Mason, Mecosta, Missaukee, Newaygo, Oceana, and Wexford; and,
- WHEREAS, in Wexford County, District Health Department # 10 has offices at and provides services to Wexford County residents in a Wexford County owned building located at 521 Cobbs Street Cadillac, MI 49601 (the "Cobbs Street Location"); and,
- WHEREAS, District Health Department #10's Health Officer has requested that a Narcan distribution box to be placed in front of the District Health Department #10 offices at the Cobbs Street Location; and
- WHEREAS, by law a health officer is granted express statutory authority to "take such actions and make such determinations necessary ... to protect the public health and prevent disease." MCL 333.2428 provides:

The local health officer... may take actions and make determinations necessary or appropriate to carry out the local health department's functions under this part or functions delegated under this part and to protect the public health and prevent disease; and

- WHEREAS, District Health Department #10's Health Officer has confirmed that placement of a Narcan distribution box at the Cobbs Street Location would not pose a health risk to the public, that the distribution box and Narcan will be properly monitored, operated and maintained by the District Health Department #10 or its designee (and is not and shall not be the responsibility of the County); and that that District Health Department #10's Health Officer as opined that such action is necessary and appropriate to protect the public health; and
- WHEREAS, although determinations regarding issues of what may be "necessary to protect the public health and protect disease" vests with the Health Officer; because here the Cobbs Street Location is owned by Wexford County and the Board of Commissioners controls the management of the county buildings and property (MCL 46.11(l)), Board of Commissioner authorization for placement on County-owned property is necessary.

- **THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED** that the Wexford County Board of Commissioners authorizes the Health Officer to install a Narcan distribution box to be placed in front of the District Health Department #10 offices at the Cobbs Street Location, if and the extent the Health Officer deems such action "necessary to protect the public health".
- **BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED**, that obligations for complying with any and all legal or administrative requirements regarding Narcan or the distribution box, and all responsibilities to monitor, stock, operate and/or maintain Narcan or the distribution box will be the sole obligation of District Health Department #10 or its designee (and is not and shall not be the responsibility of the County);
- **BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED**, that this grant is not contractual in nature and may be revoked by the Board of Commissioners and upon providing thirty calendar days' advance notice to of District Health Department #10.

# A ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN AS FOLLOWS:

) ss.

)

AYES:

NAYS:\_\_\_\_\_

# **RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED.**

Gary Taylor, Chairman, Wexford County Board of Commissioners

Alaina M. Nyman, County Clerk

STATE OF MICHIGAN

COUNTY OF WEXFORD

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of Resolution 23-09 adopted by the Board of Commissioners of Wexford County at a regular meeting held on March 15, 2023, and I further certify that public notice of such meeting was given as provided by law.

Alaina M. Nyman, County Clerk

#### AGREEMENT FOR THE PROVISION OF HEALTH CARE TO INCARCERATED PATIENTS WEXFORD COUNTY, MICHIGAN

This agreement, effective as of the date of the last signature hereto, entered into by and between the County of Wexford, a municipality and political subdivision of the State of Michigan, through the Wexford County Sheriff in their official capacity (hereinafter referred to as "County"), and Advanced Correctional Healthcare, Inc. (hereinafter referred to as "ACH"), a Tennessee corporation.

#### ARTICLE 1: ACH

- 1.1 BIOMEDICAL WASTE DISPOSAL. The county will pay for biomedical waste disposal services at the facility. Typical biomedical waste expected in the medical unit would be bandages, dressings, gloves, hypodermic needles, laboratory containers, sharps, and syringes.
- 1.2 DENTAL CARE. ACH will provide dental triage screenings. The county will pay for all costs associated with dental care.
- 1.3 ECTOPARASITES. For patients presenting with symptoms of ectoparasitic infection (as determined by the ACH prescriber), ACH will provide medically indicated treatment. For patients without symptoms of ectoparasitic infection, ACH will provide treatment at the county's request. The county will be responsible for the cost of the treatment. ACH will not be responsible for facility cleaning for ectoparasites.
- 1.4 ELECTIVE CARE. Elective care is defined as care which, if not provided, would not, in the opinion of ACH's prescriber, cause the patient's health to deteriorate. ACH will not pay for elective care for patients.
- 1.5 LABOR. Incarcerated patients will not be employed or otherwise utilized by ACH.
- 1.6 MEDICAL CLAIMS RE-PRICING. Upon the county's request, ACH will re-price medical claims through our third-party vendor, JAB Management Services. Once claims are received, JAB will calculate the applicable discount (if any) and confirm the integrity of the claim prior to returning to the county for payment. The monthly amount to be paid by the county to ACH for this service is to be 30% of the savings on the medical claim(s). (For example, if JAB re-prices a \$100 claim down to \$20, ACH will charge the county 30% of the \$80 JAB saved the county \$24.) The county agrees to pay ACH within 30 days of receipt of the bill. If the invoice is not paid within 30 days, the county agrees to pay a 1.5% per month finance charge.
- 1.7 MEDICAL SUPPLIES (DISPOSABLE). The county will pay for disposable medical supplies intended for one-time use, not to include durable or reusable medical supplies. Typical disposable medical supplies expected in a medical unit would be alcohol preps, ammonia ampules, bandages, blood sugar strips, cotton-tip applicators, gauze pads, gloves, lancets, med cups, medical tape, O2 tubing, peak flow mouth pieces, PPE (personal protective equipment), pregnancy tests, saline, sterile water, syringes, tongue blades, and urine test strips.

- 1.8 MENTAL HEALTH FIRST AID (MHFA) TRAINING. Mental Health First Aid is an 8-hour course that teaches you how to identify, understand and respond to signs of mental illnesses and substance use disorders. The training gives you the skills you need to reach out and provide initial help and support to someone who may be developing a mental health or substance use problem or experiencing a crisis. ACH provides MHFA training free to your officers.
- 1.9 MOBILE SERVICES. Mobile services are defined as laboratory services that are drawn onsite and sent off-site for testing, and any ancillary medical services in which a provider comes on-site to perform work using the provider's equipment and/or staff, including, but not limited to X-ray services. The county will pay for all costs associated with mobile services.
- 1.10 MORTALITY AND MORBIDITY REVIEW. The County acknowledges (a) that it is the responsibility of the County to obtain a review of any death in the facility (as appropriate) pursuant to any applicable statutes (if any), such as Minn. Stat. 241.021 (or any similar act or amendment of that act), (b) that ACH cannot perform such reviews for a facility where it provides medical services, and (c) that the cost of such reviews will be borne by the County.
- 1.11 OFFICER WELLNESS & CRITICAL INCIDENT EMPLOYEE RAPID RESPONSE (CIERR). The CIERR program is a free staff support service. This program helps to support law enforcement (field and facility), first responders, and health care professionals and mitigate stress reactions in both personal and professional capacities. Contact with CIERR can be initiated by the professional in need of services or Freedom Behavioral Health, Inc. can initiate contact with notification from leadership within the department that the individual would benefit from the services. Unless there are safety concerns, the contacts are treated as confidential.
- 1.12 OFF-SITE SERVICES. Off-site services are defined as medical services including, but not limited to, consultation services, dental care not performed on-site, diagnostic testing (including but not limited to covid testing), hospital services, medically-indicated emergency ground ambulance transportation, mental health services not performed on-site, laboratory services that are drawn off-site, and specialty services. It is the policy of ACH to provide our health care professionals the freedom to provide care without limitation by approval process for outside care, etc. Each situation should be addressed on a case-by-case basis. ACH does not have standing orders. The county will pay for any costs associated with off-site services.
- 1.13 OTHER SERVICES AND EXPENSES. ACH may not provide and will not pay for any services, supplies and/or equipment which are not specifically contained in this agreement.
- 1.14 PHARMACEUTICALS. The county will pay for pharmaceuticals. The county agrees to allow home medications in the facility when they are able to be properly verified. It is the policy of ACH to provide our health care professionals the freedom to provide care without limitation by prescription formulary, corporate approval for expensive medication, etc. Each situation should be addressed on a case-by-case basis. ACH does not have standing orders. ACH does not have a formulary.
- 1.15 POOL. The county will have a pool of \$26,713 to be used every 12 months (referred to as the "pool"). The pool money will be spent as indicated in this agreement. The pool dollar

amount is simply an estimation of, **not a limitation on**, how much money will likely be spent. ACH prescribers do not make treatment decisions based upon the pool money balance. Instead, it is the policy of ACH to provide our health care professionals the freedom to provide care without limitation by approval process for outside care, etc. Each situation should be addressed on a case-by-case basis.

- 1.15.1 The date of service for outpatient care, or date of admission for hospitalization, or date of the prescription, will be used to determine the calendar month in which the expenses are to be applied toward the pool. Any costs exceeding the pool will be paid by the county at the time the costs exceed the pool, or monthly, as needed.
- 1.15.2 Any monies remaining in the pool after receipt of invoices will be shared with the county at a rate of 90% to the county / 10% to ACH within 90 days after the pool close date. Invoices received after the pool close date will be forwarded to the county for payment.
- 1.15.3 In the event this agreement is terminated prior to the pool close date, any remaining pool monies will be prorated for the portion of the 12-month term elapsed. Costs exceeding the prorated amount will be paid by the county.
- 1.16 STAFFING.
  - 1.16.1 CANCELATIONS. If the county cancels a worker with less than 24 hours' notice prior to the start of the worker's shift, then the county agrees to pay for the worker's shift.
  - 1.16.2 CREDITS. ACH pays its people well based on several factors including but not limited to experience in correctional healthcare. Therefore, ACH will not issue credits for differences in licensure; i.e., nurse practitioner vs. M.D., LPN vs. RN, etc. (For example, nurse practitioners are not necessarily paid less than M.D.s; LPNs are not necessarily paid less than RNs, etc.)
  - 1.16.3 MEAL BREAKS. It is understood and agreed that during unpaid meal break(s), workers are (1) allowed to leave their duty post and (2) completely relieved from all duties. If the facility requires the worker to be "on call" during meal break(s) so that they may respond to an emergency, then the worker is considered to be "on duty" and the meal break(s) will be paid for by the county.
  - 1.16.4 MEDICAL PRESCRIBER. A prescriber will visit the facility weekly (or as otherwise agreed by the county and ACH) and will stay until their work is completed. A prescriber will be available by telephone to the facility and health care teams on an on-call basis, 7 days per week, 24 hours per day, 365 days a year. For onsite visits that fall on holidays, paid time off, or sick time, ACH endeavors to provide replacement onsite coverage, and if it is unable to do so, ACH and the county will negotiate a mutually agreeable remedy (such as crediting back 75% of the wages of the particular worker) (the other 25% pays for telephone on-call).
  - 1.16.5 NURSING. ACH will provide on-site nursing coverage for 84 hours per week on a schedule approved by the county. ACH does not and will not put nurses on-call. The county agrees to pay, on a monthly basis, for extra hours worked (at the prevailing wage and benefit rate of the particular worker). For hours of absence due

to holidays, paid time off, or sick time, the hours will not be replaced or credited (because the worker is still being paid for the time off). For other absences, ACH endeavors to provide replacement coverage, and if it is unable to do so, ACH and the county or designee will negotiate a mutually agreeable remedy (such as crediting back the wages of the particular worker).

- 1.16.6 ON-CALL QUALIFIED MENTAL HEALTH PROFESSIONAL (QMHP). Upon the facility's request, ACH will provide a QMHP at the rate of \$150 per hour (with a minimum of 1 hour per visit). Services may be provided in-person or via tele-health (as mutually agreed upon). QMHP responsiveness will depend upon the amount of notice given, and the mutually agreed upon schedule.
- 1.16.7 TELEHEALTH. When agreed to between the county and ACH, providers may deliver patient care via telehealth.
- 1.17 TUBERCULOSIS (TB) TESTING. ACH will perform TB skin tests as directed by the county. The county will pay for the TB serum and related supplies.
- 1.18 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. ACH and/or any of its subcontractors, shall not commence work under this Agreement until they have obtained the insurance required under this Section, and shall keep such insurance in force during the entire life of this Agreement. All coverage shall be with insurance companies licensed to do business in the State of Michigan and acceptable to the COUNTY. The requirements below should not be interpreted to limit the liability of ACH. All deductibles and SIR's are the responsibility of ACH. ACH shall procure and maintain the following insurance coverage:
  - 1.18.1 Worker's Compensation Insurance: Including Employers' Liability Coverage, in accordance with all applicable statutes of the State of Michigan.
  - 1.18.2 Commercial General Liability Insurance: on an "Occurrence Basis" with limits of liability not less than \$1,000,000 per occurrence and aggregate. Coverage shall include the following extensions: (A) Contractual Liability; (B) Products and Completed Operations; (C) Independent Contractors Coverage; (D) Broad Form General Liability Extensions or equivalent, if not already included; (E) Deletion of all Explosion, Collapse, and Underground (XCU) exclusion, if applicable.
  - 1.18.3 Medical Malpractice Insurance: ACH shall procure and maintain during the duration of this Agreement, Medical Malpractice Insurance, covering all services rendered by ACH's physicians and other medical personnel (e.g. physician assistants, nurses, etc.) including, but not limited to, testing procedures, reviews, recommendations and issuance of prescriptions. Limits of liability of the Medical Malpractice Insurance shall not be less than \$1,000,000 per occurrence and \$3,000,000 aggregate. If the insurance is on a claims made basis, the insurance policy shall be maintained for a period of three (3) years after the end of this Agreement, or include a three-year extended reporting period.
  - 1.18.4 Automobile Liability: insurance including Michigan No-Fault Coverages, with limits of liability not less than \$1,000,000 per occurrence, combined single limit for Bodily Injury, and Property Damage. Coverage shall include all owned vehicles, all non-owned vehicles, and all hired vehicles.

- 1.18.5 Additional Insured: Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability, as described above, shall include an endorsement stating the following shall be Additional Insured: Livingston County, all Livingston County's elected and appointed officials, all employees and volunteers, all boards, commissions, and/or authorities and board members, including employees and volunteers thereof. It is understood and agreed that said insurance coverages shall be primary coverage to the Additional Insureds, and not contributing with any other insurance or similar protection available to the Additional Insureds. Any other insurance the Additional Insureds may have in effect shall be considered secondary and/or excess.
- 1.18.6 <u>Cancellation Notice</u>: All policies, as described above, shall include an endorsement stating that it is understood and agreed that Thirty (30) days, Ten (10) days for non-payment of premium, Advance Written Notice of Cancellation, Non-Renewal, Reduction, and/or Material Change shall be sent to County.
- 1.18.7 <u>Proof of Insurance Coverage</u>: ACH shall provide the COUNTY, at the time that the Agreement copies are returned by it for execution, with a Certificate of Insurance as well as the required endorsements. In lieu of required endorsements, if applicable, a copy of the policy sections where coverage is provided for additional insured and cancellation notice would be acceptable. Copies or certified copies of all policies mentioned above shall be furnished, if so requested.
- 1.19 INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS. ACH will hold harmless and indemnify the COUNTY and SHERIFF (together with their respective employees) against any loss or damage, including reasonable attorneys' fees and other costs of litigation, solely caused or necessitated by the negligent, reckless, intentional, or deliberately indifferent conduct of ACH or its employees, which is related to medical treatment or medical care provided by ACH. With respect to any claim for indemnification, the COUNTY will (i) give written notice thereof to ACH within a reasonable period following the COUNTY'S knowledge or awareness of the event or occurrence as to which the right to indemnification is or may be asserted and (ii) allow ACH (including the employees, agents, and counsel) reasonable access to any of its employees, property, and records for the purposes of conducting an investigation of such claim and for the purpose of obtaining statements, photographs, and taking such other steps as may be necessary to preserve evidence of the occurrence on which the claim is based. If the COUNTY denies ACH reasonable access as set forth, after written request therefore, the COUNTY will assume sole responsibility for the claim for which indemnification is sought and will not be entitled to indemnity. The responsibility for indemnification set forth in this Section shall be limited to the degree of fault of ACH; its employees, agents or subcontractors.

## ARTICLE 2: THE COUNTY

2.1 AUTOMATED EXTERNAL DEFIBRILLATORS (AEDs). The duty to purchase, provide, inspect, and maintain the facility's AEDs is, and always will be, vested in the county. This agreement does not result in the assumption of those duties by ACH or its people. While ACH and its people may assist the county, ultimately the county specifically retains the duties and obligations with respect to AEDs. ACH and its people will assume no responsibility for and will not be liable for the facility's lack of AED(s) and/or defective and/or non-working AEDs in the facility.

- 2.2 CO-PAY. Patients will be seen by the health care team regardless of their ability to pay.
- 2.3 COUNTY'S POLICIES, PROCEDURES. All policies, and procedures will at all times remain the property of the county and will remain at the facility. ACH may make recommendations to the county's health care policies and procedures. Those recommendations are made for the county's consideration. ACH operates within the county's policies and procedures. It is the policy of ACH to provide our health care professionals the freedom to provide care without limitation by prescription formulary, approval process for outside care, etc. The materials in this section are for general information purposes only. That information should be treated as guidelines, not rules. The information is not intended to establish a standard of medical care and is not a substitute for common sense. The information is <u>not</u> legal advice, is not to be acted on as such, may not be current, and is subject to change without notice. Each situation should be addressed on a case-by-case basis. ACH does not have standing orders. ACH does not have a formulary.
- 2.4 CPR CARDS. ACH will not pay for CPR cards for county workers.
- 2.5 DUTY TO PROTECT PATIENTS. The non-delegable duty to protect patients is, and always will be, vested in the county. This agreement does not result in the assumption of a non-delegable duty by ACH. As such, the county specifically retains the duty and obligation for security of the patients. This duty extends to the control of patient movement. ACH and its personnel will assume no responsibility for the movement of patients and assume no responsibility for patient protection at any time.
- 2.6 ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATIONS. The county agrees to provide to ACH copies of any electronic communications between ACH and ACH's workers and independent contractors in the county's possession (including stored on the county's email servers) as requested by ACH. The county agrees to treat electronic communications between ACH and its workers and independent contractors as confidential and agrees not to share those communications with any third party unless required by law.
- 2.7 WORKER RAIDING (ANTI-POACHING / NON-SOLICITATION AGREEMENT). ACH makes a significant investment in the training and professional development of our workers and independent contractors. As a result, ACH does not expect the county to offer employment to or otherwise "poach" or solicit workers or independent contractors and the county is specifically prohibited from doing the same. If the county should hire any worker or independent contractor during this agreement's term or within 1 year after this agreement's termination, the county agrees to pay ACH a professional replacement fee of \$10,000 or 10% of this contract price, whichever is greater, for each worker or independent contractor, with the following exception: this does not apply to any person who was employed by the county prior to this agreement. It is expressly agreed by ACH and the county that the payment under this provision does not constitute a penalty and that the parties, having negotiated in good faith and having agreed that the payment is a reasonable estimate of damages in light of the anticipated harm caused by the breach related thereto and the difficulties of proof of loss and inconvenience or nonfeasibility of obtaining any adequate remedy, are estopped from contesting the validity or enforceability of such payment.
- 2.8 MEDICAL AND MENTAL HEALTH RECORDS. Patient medical and mental health records will always be the property of the county and will remain in the facility. The county agrees to provide copies of those records to ACH when requested.

- 2.9 MEDICAL EQUIPMENT (DURABLE). The county pays for medical equipment. At the county's request, ACH will assist the county in securing the equipment at cost-effective pricing. Typical durable medical equipment expected in a medical unit would be: exam table, exam stool, ophthalmic / otoscope, peak flow meter, digital thermometer, stethoscope, X-large and large blood pressure cuffs, refrigerator (small), and scales. Medical equipment will be the property of the county.
- 2.10 NON-MEDICAL CARE OF PATIENTS. The county will provide and pay for non-medical needs of the patients while in the facility, including, but not limited to: daily housekeeping services; dietary services, including special supplements, liquid diets, or other dietary needs; building maintenance services; personal hygiene supplies and services; clothing; and linen supplies.
- 2.11 NURSING LICENSURE. ACH's preference is to run a health care program using RNs. Ultimately, the level of nursing licensure ACH provides at the facility is the county's decision (RN vs. LPN). ACH does not and will not put nurses on-call.
- 2.12 OFFICE EQUIPMENT (DURABLE). The county will provide use of county-owned office equipment and utilities in place at the facility's health care unit. Typical office equipment expected in a medical unit would be a locking file (recommended four-drawer); paper punch; staple remover; stapler; cabinet for storing medical supplies such as Band-Aids, gauze, etc.; computer; fax machine; copier / printer; and toner. Upon termination of this agreement, the office equipment will be in good working order, with allowances made for reasonable wear and tear.
- 2.13 OFFICE SUPPLIES (DISPOSABLE). The county will provide disposable office supplies, such as medical charts, paper, pens, staples, and Post-It notes which are required for the provision of patient health care services.
- 2.14 OFFICER TRAINING. The duty to train the officer(s) is and always remains vested in the county. Upon request of the county, ACH may assist in training for officer(s) on certain topics as determined by the county. The county is solely responsible for overall operation of the facility, including medical care. The county maintains ultimate responsibility for training and supervising its correctional officers, including but not limited to emergency procedures, ensuring sick calls are passed along to the medical team, and properly distributing medications (where appropriate).
- 2.15 PREVENTATIVE SERVICES. If the county requests preventative services (such as flu shots, covid vaccinations, etc.) for incarcerated patients or county workers, the county will pay for it. ACH may provide, but will not pay for, preventative services. Upon the county's request, ACH will secure the vaccination (for example) and related supplies (if applicable) through the correctional pharmacy or health department, then bill the county for any costs, and the county agrees to pay.
- 2.16 RECRUITING.
  - 2.16.1 DECLINING APPLICANTS FROM ACH SO THE COUNTY MAY EMPLOY THEM DIRECTLY. ACH makes a significant investment in the recruiting of new applicants and acknowledges the county has final approval of who may enter the facility. As a result, ACH does not expect the county to deny approval of an applicant presented

to them in order for the county to employ that person directly. If, during the term of this agreement or within 1 year after this agreement's termination, the county should hire an applicant who was presented to them by ACH and denied approval by the county, the county agrees to pay ACH 30% of the applicant's first year's salary/compensation as a recruiting fee for each applicant.

- 2.16.2 DECLINING TO FILL A POSITION AFTER ACH INCURS ADVERTISING AND RECRUITING COSTS. ACH makes a significant investment in the advertising and recruiting of new applicants and acknowledges the county has final approval of the staffing level at the facility. As a result, ACH does not expect the county to decline to fill a position after ACH has incurred advertising and recruiting costs. If, during the term of this agreement, ACH should begin advertising and recruiting for a position(s), and the county subsequently decides not to fill that position(s), the county agrees to pay ACH the actual costs of advertising and recruiting plus 30%.
- 2.17 SECURITY. The county will maintain responsibility for the physical security of the facility and the continuing security of the patients. The county understands that adequate security services are necessary for the safety of the agents, workers, and subcontractors of ACH, as well as for the security of patients and officer(s), consistent with the correctional setting. The county will provide security sufficient to enable ACH and its personnel to safely provide the health care services described in this agreement. The county will screen ACH's proposed staff to ensure that they will not constitute a security risk. The county will have final approval of ACH's workers and independent contractors regarding security/background clearance. Should the facility unreasonably withhold security clearance and/or withhold security clearance on an unreasonably high quantity of proposed staff, it places an excessive burden on ACH to staff the facility. In that case, ACH may hire Agency worker(s) to temporarily staff the facility, and the county agrees to pay the difference between the Agency rate(s) and ACH rate(s).
- 2.18 STAFFING. The county agrees that mental health services at the facility will be provided by the county and ACH has no responsibility under this agreement to provide mental health services at the facility. The parties further agree that the mental health team provided by the county will work cooperatively with ACH to effectively carry out the terms and conditions of this agreement. ACH will not be responsible for the training of the county's mental health team.

#### ARTICLE 3: COMPENSATION/ADJUSTMENTS

- 3.1 ANNUAL AMOUNT/MONTHLY PAYMENTS. ACH will bill the county approximately 30 days prior to the month in which services are to be rendered. The county agrees to pay ACH within 30 days of receipt of the bill. If the invoice is not paid within 30 days, the county agrees to pay a 1.5% per month finance charge.
  - 3.1.1 EFFECTIVE 2/15/23-6/30/23. The county agrees to pay \$429,999 per year to ACH under this agreement. To do so, the county agrees to make monthly payments of \$35,833.25 to ACH during the term of this agreement.
  - 3.1.2 EFFECTIVE 7/1/23-12/31/23. The county agrees to pay \$465,164 per year to ACH under this agreement. To do so, the county agrees to make monthly payments of \$38,763.67 to ACH during the term of this agreement.

- 3.1.3 EFFECTIVE 1/1/24-12/31/24. The county agrees to pay \$476,793 per year to ACH under this agreement. To do so, the county agrees to make monthly payments of \$39,732.75 to ACH during the term of this agreement.
- 3.1.4 EFFECTIVE 1/1/25-12/31/25 (AND BEYOND). Upon the annual anniversary of the commencement of services under this agreement, the annualized amount of increase for compensation and per diem rates (and any other contracted rates, including the on-call QMHP rate, for example) will be the rolling 12-month Consumer Price Index (CPI) for Medical Care or 5%, whichever is higher.
- 3.1.5 ELECTRONIC PAYMENTS. The county agrees to pay ACH electronically through the Automated Clearing House. If the county does not want to pay electronically, then the county agrees to pay an additional 2% per month charge. If the county believes it is statutorily exempt, please provide the statute citation.
- 3.2 FUNDING THE FACILITY'S HEALTH CARE PROGRAM. It is ultimately the responsibility of the county to appropriately fund the facility's health care program. As a result, ACH's health care program at the facility (staffing, etc.) is customized and approved by the county.
- 3.3 QUARTERLY ADJUSTMENTS.
  - 3.3.1 AVERAGE DAILY POPULATION (ADP). ADP for a given quarter will be determined from the facility census records. For billing purposes, the patient ADP will be 158. Patients who are not presently incarcerated in the facility (i.e., persons on electronic monitoring or probation, or who are hospitalized, or in halfway housing or early release housing) should not be counted in either ADP reported to ACH by the county. The ADPs reported to ACH should only include those patients presently incarcerated in the facility.
  - 3.3.2 PER DIEM. When the ADP exceeds or falls below the contracted rate in any calendar quarter, the compensation variance will be figured on the average number of patients above or below the contracted ADP for that quarter multiplied by the per diem rate of \$0.43 per patient per day. (Example: If the ADP for a quarter is 10 above the contracted ADP, additional compensation due will be calculated as follows: 10 x \$0.43 x 91)
  - 3.3.3 RECONCILIATION. Any contract amount in arrears (or amount to be credited back to the county) will be settled through reconciliation on the first monthly invoice prepared after reconciliation. No credits will be issued after 90 days.

## ARTICLE 4: TERM AND TERMINATION

4.1 TERM. The term of this agreement will begin on February 15, 2023 at 12:01 A.M. and will continue in full force and effect until December 31, 2023 at 11:59 P.M., unless earlier terminated, extended, or renewed pursuant to this agreement. This agreement will renew for successive 3-year periods if the County gives 30 days' written notice to ACH prior to the end of a term.

#### 4.2 TERMINATION.

- 4.2.1 TERMINATION FOR LACK OF APPROPRIATIONS. It is understood and agreed that this agreement will be subject to annual appropriations by the county. If funds are not appropriated for this agreement, then upon exhaustion of such funding, the county will be entitled to immediately terminate this agreement. Recognizing that such termination may entail substantial costs for ACH, the county will act in good faith and make every effort to give ACH reasonable advance notice of any potential problem with funding or appropriations. The county agrees to pay for services rendered up to the point of termination.
- 4.2.2 30-DAY OUT CLAUSE. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this agreement, the county or ACH may, without prejudice to any other rights they may have, terminate this agreement by giving 30 days' advance written notice to the other party. If the county gives ACH less than 30 days' advance written notice, the county agrees to pay to ACH 1-month's contract price as an early termination fee.

#### ARTICLE 5: GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

- 5.1 ADVICE OF COUNSEL. Each of the parties (a) has had the opportunity to seek counsel, legal or otherwise, prior to entering into this agreement, (b) is freely entering into this agreement of his/her or its own volition, and (c) understands and agrees that this agreement will be construed as if drafted by both parties and not by one party solely.
- 5.2 AUTHORITY. The persons signing below represent that they have the right and authority to execute this agreement for their respective entities and no further approvals are necessary to create a binding agreement.
- 5.3 COMPLIANCE WITH FEDERAL, STATE AND LOCAL LAWS. The county and ACH agree that no party will require performance of any ACH or county worker, agent or independent contractor that would violate federal, state and/or local laws, ordinances, rules and/or regulations. If the county elects not to follow any federal, state, or local law, the parties agree the county will be responsible for all costs associated with noncompliance. The county will be responsible for any additional services required at the facility as the result of governmental (including, but not limited to, Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, Department of Justice, health department, Immigration and Customs Enforcement, Department of Corrections, Federal Bureau of Prisons, or United States Marshals Service) investigation, mandate, memorandum, or order. Should ACH be asked to provide substantial new medical treatment, the county will pay for it, unless specifically agreed upon in writing between ACH and the county.
- 5.4 COUNTERPARTS; HEADINGS. This agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which will be an original and all of which will constitute one agreement. The headings contained in this agreement are for reference purposes only and will not affect in any way the meaning or interpretation of this agreement. The term "patient" includes incarcerated detainees and inmates.
- 5.5 EMAIL ACCOUNTS. As a general rule, ACH will not provide frontline email accounts. If the county would prefer that ACH issue email accounts, then the county agrees to pay the additional costs for the licenses (i.e., in 2022, ~\$72/year per email account).

- 5.6 ENTIRE AGREEMENT; AMENDMENT. This agreement represents the entire understanding of the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof, supersedes and cancels all prior agreements, understandings, arrangements, or representations between the parties with respect to such subject matter, and may only be amended by written agreement of both parties. The parties agree that their performances hereunder do not obligate either party to enter into any further agreement or business arrangement.
- 5.7 EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY. It is the policy of ACH to provide equal employment opportunities to all workers and applicants for employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, national origin, disability, age, or genetics. This policy applies to all terms and conditions of employment including, but not limited to, recruitment, hiring, placement, promotion, termination, layoff, recall, transfer, leaves of absence, benefit plans, all forms of compensation, and training.
- 5.8 EXCUSED PERFORMANCE. In case performance of any terms or parts hereof will be delayed or prevented because of compliance with any law, decree, or order of any governmental agency or authority of local, state, or federal governments or because of riots, public disturbances, strikes, lockouts, differences with workers, fires, floods, Acts of God, pandemics, or any other reason whatsoever which is not within the control of the parties whose performance is interfered with and which, by the exercise of reasonable diligence, said party is unable to prevent, the party so suffering may at its option, suspend, without liability, the performance of its obligations hereunder during the period such cause continues.
- 5.9 FILMING. ACH does not consent to the filming of its workers for any commercial purpose including, but not limited to, documentaries, docuseries (including, but not limited to, "60 Days In"), etcetera. The County will not engage in such a project.
- 5.10 FURTHER ACTS. The parties agree to perform any further acts and execute and deliver any further documents that may be reasonably necessary to carry out the provisions of this agreement.
- 5.11 GOVERNING LAW. This agreement will be governed by the laws of the State of Michigan (without reference to conflicts of laws principles). Venue for any dispute will be in the State or Federal Court for Wexford County, Michigan.
- 5.12 INDEPENDENT CONTRACTORS. ACH may engage certain health care professionals as independent contractors rather than workers. The county understands and acknowledges that some physicians, advanced practice providers, nurses, mental health workers, consultants, specialists, and other allied health professionals practicing with ACH ("health care team members") are not workers or associates of ACH; and that ACH is not responsible for their opinions, decisions or medical procedures performed.
- 5.13 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENTS (IGAs) (PIGGYBACK). ACH agrees to allow the county to authorize other government agencies to purchase the proposed items by issuance of a purchase order at the same terms and conditions as this agreement, and to make payments directly to ACH during the period of time that this agreement is in effect.

- 5.14 NO GRANT OF RIGHTS. Each of the parties understands and agrees that no grant or license of a party's rights in any patent, trademark, trade secret, copyright and/or other intellectual property right is made hereby, expressly or by implication.
- 5.15 NO RELATIONSHIP OR AUTHORITY. The parties agree that ACH will at all times be an independent contractor in the performance of the services hereunder, and that nothing in this agreement will be construed as or have the effect of constituting any relationship of employer/employee, partnership, or joint venture between the county and ACH. ACH does not have the power or authority to bind the county or to assume or create any obligation or responsibility on the county's behalf or in the county's name, except as otherwise explicitly detailed in this agreement, and ACH will not represent to any person or entity that ACH has such power or authority. ACH will not act as an agent nor will ACH be deemed to be an employee of the county for the purposes of any employee benefit program.
- 5.16 NOTICE. Any notice required or permitted to be given hereunder will be in writing and delivered to the respective addresses in this section or such other addresses as may be designated in writing by the applicable party from time to time and will be deemed to have been given when sent. To the county: Wexford County Jail, 1015 Lincoln St., Cadillac, MI 49601; facsimile: 231-779-5498; email: ttaylor@wexfordcounty.org; mmcdaniel@wexfordcounty.org; rdoehring@wexfordcounty.org. To ACH: Advanced Correctional Healthcare, Inc., Attn: Legal, 720 Cool Springs Blvd., Suite 100, Franklin, TN 37067; facsimile: 309.214.9977; email: Contracts@advancedch.com.
- 5.17 OTHER CONTRACTS AND THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES. The parties acknowledge that ACH is not bound by or aware of any other existing contracts to which the county is a party and which relate to the provision of health care to patients at the facility. The parties agree that they have not entered into this agreement for the benefit of any third person(s) and it is their express intention that this agreement is intended to be for their respective benefits only and not for the benefits of others who might otherwise be deemed to constitute third party beneficiaries thereof.
- 5.18 SEVERABILITY. If any provision of this agreement, or any portion thereof, is found to be invalid, unlawful, or unenforceable to any extent, such provision will be enforced to the maximum extent permissible so as to effect the intent of the parties, and the remainder of this agreement will continue unaffected in full force and effect. The parties will negotiate in good faith an enforceable substitute provision for such invalid provision that most nearly achieves the same intent and economic effect.
- 5.19 SUBCONTRACTING. ACH may subcontract services including, but not limited to, biomedical waste disposal, electronic medical records, mobile services, pharmaceutical services, staffing, and training. For example, ACH subcontracts staffing to USA Medical & Psychological Staffing, LLC; behavioral health care to Freedom Behavioral Health, S.C.; EMR to Advanced Inmate Medical Management, LLC; and training to Spark Training, LLC.
- 5.20 TRAINING MATERIAL. Information in any training material should be treated as guidelines, not rules. The information presented is not intended to establish a standard of medical care and is not a substitute for common sense. The information presented is not legal advice, is not to be acted on as such, may not be current, and is subject to change without notice. Each situation should be addressed on a case-by-case basis.

5.21 WAIVER. Any waiver of the provisions of this agreement or of a party's rights or remedies under this agreement must be in writing to be effective. Failure, neglect, or delay by a party to enforce the provisions hereof or its rights or remedies at any time, will not be construed as a waiver of such party's rights or remedies hereunder and will not in any way affect the validity of this agreement or prejudice such party's right to take subsequent action.

**IN WITNESS WHEREOF**, the parties hereto have hereunto set their hands and seals the date and year written below.

## ADVANCED CORRECTIONAL HEALTHCARE, INC.

Jessica K. Young, Esq., CCHP-A President & Chief Executive Officer Date

## **COUNTY OF WEXFORD, MICHIGAN**

Gary Taylor, Chairperson County Board of Commissioners Date

Please complete and return via email to Contracts@advancedch.com.

 APPROVED AS TO FORM FOR COUNTY OF WEXFORD:

 COHL, STOKER & TOSKEY, P.C.

 By:
 DONALD J. KULHANEK

 On:
 March 3, 2023

N:\Client\Wexford\Agreements\Advanced Correctional Healthcare\Agreement for Healthcare r1.docx

## BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT WEXFORD COUNTY, MICHIGAN

This Agreement, effective as of the date of the last signature hereto, entered into by and between the County of Wexford, a municipality and political subdivision of the State of Michigan, through the Wexford County Sheriff in their official capacity (hereinafter referred to as "County" or "Covered Entity"), and Advanced Correctional Healthcare, Inc. (hereinafter referred to as "ACH" or "Business Associate")), a Tennessee corporation.

#### Definitions

#### Catch-all definition:

The following terms used in this Agreement will have the same meaning as those terms in the HIPAA Rules (https://www.federalregister.gov/articles/2013/01/25/2013-01073/modifications-to-the-hipaa-privacy-security-enforcement-and-breach-notification-rules-under-the): Breach, Data Aggregation, Designated Record Set, Disclosure, Health Care Operations, Individual, Minimum Necessary, Notice of Privacy Practices, Protected Health Information, Required By Law, Secretary, Security Incident, Subcontractor, Unsecured Protected Health Information, and Use.

#### Specific definitions:

(a) <u>Business Associate</u>. "Business Associate" will generally have the same meaning as the term "Business Associate" at 45 CFR 160.103, and in reference to the party to this agreement, will mean Advanced Correctional Healthcare, Inc.

(b)<u>Covered Entity</u>. "Covered Entity" will generally have the same meaning as the term "Covered Entity" at 45 CFR 160.103, and in reference to the party to this agreement, will mean County of Wexford.

(c)<u>HIPAA Rules</u>. "HIPAA Rules" will mean the Privacy, Security, Breach Notification, and Enforcement Rules at 45 CFR Part 160 and Part 164.

#### **Obligations and Activities of Business Associate**

Business Associate agrees to:

(a) Not use or disclose protected health information other than as permitted or required by the Agreement or as required by law;

(b) Use appropriate safeguards, and comply with Subpart C of 45 CFR Part 164 with respect to electronic protected health information, to prevent use or disclosure of protected health information other than as provided for by the Agreement;

(c)Report to Covered Entity any use or disclosure of protected health information not provided for by the Agreement of which it becomes aware, including breaches of unsecured protected health information as required at 45 CFR 164.410, within 48 hours (except for any breaches putting patients at immediate risk of harm, which should be reported as soon as possible) and any security incident of which it becomes aware;

(d) In accordance with 45 CFR 164.502(e)(1)(ii) and 164.308(b)(2), if applicable, ensure that any subcontractors that create, receive, maintain, or transmit protected health information on behalf of the Business Associate agree to the same restrictions, conditions, and requirements that apply to the Business Associate with respect to such information;

(e) Make available protected health information in a designated record set to the Covered Entity as necessary to satisfy Covered Entity's obligations under 45 CFR 164.524;

(f) Make any amendment(s) to protected health information in a designated record set as directed or agreed to by the Covered Entity pursuant to 45 CFR 164.526, or take other measures as necessary to satisfy Covered Entity's obligations under 45 CFR 164.526;

(g)Maintain and make available the information required to provide an accounting of disclosures to the Covered Entity as necessary to satisfy Covered Entity's obligations under 45 CFR 164.528;

(h)To the extent the Business Associate is to carry out one or more of Covered Entity's obligation(s) under Subpart E of 45 CFR Part 164, comply with the requirements of Subpart E that apply to the Covered Entity in the performance of such obligation(s); and

(i)Make its internal practices, books, and records available to the Secretary for purposes of determining compliance with the HIPAA Rules.

#### Permitted Uses and Disclosures by Business Associate

(a)Business Associate may only use or disclose protected health information as necessary to perform the services set forth in the Agreement for the Provision of Health Services. The Business Associate is authorized to use protected health information to de-identify the information in accordance with 45 CFR 164.514(a)-(c).

(b)Business Associate may use or disclose protected health information as required by law.

(c) Business Associate agrees to make uses and disclosures and requests for protected health information consistent with Covered Entity's minimum necessary policies and procedures.

(d) Business Associate may not use or disclose protected health information in a manner that would violate Subpart E of 45 CFR Part 164 if done by Covered Entity, except for the specific uses and disclosures set forth below.

(e) Business Associate may use protected health information for the proper management and administration of the Business Associate or to carry out the legal responsibilities of the Business Associate.

(f) Business Associate may disclose protected health information for the proper management and administration of Business Associate or to carry out the legal responsibilities of the Business Associate, provided the disclosures are required by law, or Business Associate obtains reasonable assurances from the person to whom the information is disclosed that the information will remain confidential and used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purposes for which it was disclosed to the person, and the person notifies Business Associate of any instances of which it is aware in which the confidentiality of the information has been breached.

(g)Business Associate may provide data aggregation services relating to the health care operations of the Covered Entity.

# Provisions for Covered Entity to Inform Business Associate of Privacy Practices and Restrictions

(a)Covered Entity will notify Business Associate of any limitation(s) in the notice of privacy practices of Covered Entity under 45 CFR 164.520, to the extent that such limitation may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of protected health information.

(b)Covered Entity will notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation of, the permission by an individual to use or disclose his or her protected health information, to the extent that such changes may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of protected health information.

(c)Covered Entity will notify Business Associate of any restriction on the use or disclosure of protected health information that Covered Entity has agreed to or is required to abide by under 45 CFR 164.522, to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of protected health information.

#### information.

#### Permissible Requests by Covered Entity

Covered Entity will not request Business Associate to use or disclose protected health information in any manner that would not be permissible under Subpart E of 45 CFR Part 164 if done by Covered Entity, except if the Business Associate will use or disclose protected health information for data aggregation or management and administration and legal responsibilities of the Business Associate.

#### Term and Termination

(a) <u>Term</u>. The Term of this Agreement will be effective as of the date of the last signature hereto, and will terminate on the termination of the Agreement for Health Services or the date Covered Entity terminates for cause as authorized in paragraph (b) of this Section, whichever is sooner.

(b)<u>Termination for Cause</u>. Business Associate authorizes termination of this Agreement by Covered Entity, if Covered Entity determines Business Associate has violated a material term of the Agreement and Business Associate has not cured the breach or ended the violation within the time specified by Covered Entity.

#### (c)Obligations of Business Associate Upon Termination.

Upon termination of this Agreement for any reason, Business Associate, with respect to protected health information received from Covered Entity, or created, maintained, or received by Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity, will:

- 1. Retain only that protected health information which is necessary for Business Associate to continue its proper management and administration or to carry out its legal responsibilities;
- 2. Return to Covered Entity or, if agreed to by Covered Entity, destroy the remaining protected health information that the Business Associate still maintains in any form;
- Continue to use appropriate safeguards and comply with Subpart C of 45 CFR Part 164 with respect to electronic protected health information to prevent use or disclosure of the protected health information, other than as provided for in this Section, for as long as Business Associate retains the protected health information;
- 4. Not use or disclose the protected health information retained by Business Associate other than for the purposes for which such protected health information was retained and subject to the same conditions set out at paragraphs (e) and (f) above under "Permitted Uses and Disclosures By Business Associate" which applied prior to termination; and
- 5. Return to Covered Entity [or, if agreed to by Covered Entity, destroy] the protected health information retained by Business Associate when it is no longer needed by Business Associate for its proper management and administration or to carry out its legal responsibilities.

(d)<u>Survival</u>. The obligations of Business Associate under this Section will survive the termination of this Agreement.

#### Miscellaneous

(a)<u>Regulatory References</u>. A reference in this Agreement to a section in the HIPAA Rules means the section as in effect or as amended.

(b)<u>Amendment</u>. The Parties agree to take such action as is necessary to amend this Agreement from time to time as is necessary for compliance with the requirements of the HIPAA Rules and any other applicable law. No amendment to this Agreement will be effective until reduced to writing and signed by the parties.

(c)<u>Interpretation</u>. Any ambiguity in this Agreement will be interpreted to permit compliance with the HIPAA Rules.

- (d) No Third Party Beneficiaries. There are no intended third party beneficiaries to this Agreement.
- (e) Without in anyway limiting the foregoing, it is the parties' specific intent that nothing contained in this Agreement give rise to any right or cause of action, contractual or otherwise, in or on behalf of any Individual whose PHI is Used or Disclosed pursuant to this Agreement.
- (f) <u>Waiver</u>. No provision of this Agreement may be waived except by an agreement in writing signed by the waiving party. A waiver of any term or provision will not be construed as a waiver of any other term or provision.
- (g) <u>Authority</u>. The persons signing below have the right and authority to execute this Agreement for their respective entities and no further approvals are necessary to create a binding Agreement.
- (h) <u>Conflict</u>. In the event of any conflict between the terms and conditions stated within this Agreement and those contained within any other agreement or understanding between the parties, written, oral or implied, the terms of this Agreement will govern. Without limiting the foregoing, no provision of any other agreement or understanding between the parties limiting the liability of the Business Associate to Covered Entity will apply to the breach of any term, condition or covenant contained in this Agreement by Business Associate.
- (i) <u>Headings</u>. The headings of each section are inserted solely for purposes of convenience and will not alter the meaning of this Agreement.
- (j) <u>Governing Law</u>. This Agreement will be construed in accordance with and governed by the laws of the State of Michigan.

#### [Signature page to follow]

**IN WITNESS WHEREOF,** the parties have executed this Agreement effective upon the date of the last signature hereto.

#### **BUSINESS ASSOCIATE**

ADVANCED CORRECTIONAL HEALTHCARE, INC.

Jessica K. Young, Esq., CCHP-A President & Chief Executive Officer

Date

**COVERED ENTITY** 

WEXFORD COUNTY

Gary Taylor, Chairperson County Board of Commissioners

Date

 APPROVED AS TO FORM FOR COUNTY OF WEXFORD:

 COHL, STOKER & TOSKEY, P.C.

 By:
 DONALD J. KULHANEK

 On:
 March 3, 2023

N:\Client\Wexford\Agreements\Advanced Correctional Healthcare\Business Associate Agreement (rev).docx



L.1.

February 23, 2023

**To:** Wexford County Building and Recreation Committee – Board of Commissioners

Fr: Mathew Cooke, Community Planner

**Re:** Wexford County Parks and Recreation Plan

## <u>Survey</u>

Attached for your review is the updated survey with additional activities and separation of the Civic Center and Fairgrounds. We can make additional changes at the upcoming meeting if necessary.

Assuming we are okay on the survey, we will release a flyer with a QR code and an easily typed survey link. I should have a copy of the flyer prepared for the meeting, and will provide a few copies for members and a digital copy for additional printings. A press release will be sent out and a communication to community organizations and local municipalities will be sent out. Networks Northwest will post the survey on their social media which can be shared by others, and we will update the Resource Page to include the survey.

## Public Input Sessions

We will look to set a date and location for the Community Open House session. This will likely take place in Cadillac from 4pm to 7pm. I am open to any recommendations on date or location of event, although I do anticipate the event to take place in late summer.

I have received some ideas for the 3 pop up sessions so please feel free to share any.

Antrim •Benzie • Charlevoix • Emmet • Grand Traverse • Kalkaska • Leelanau • Manistee • Missaukee • Wexford PO Box 506 • Traverse City, MI 49685-0506 • Phone (231) 929-5000 • Fax (231) 929-5012 <u>networksnorthwest.org</u>

Networks Northwest and Northwest Michigan Works! are supported by the State of Michigan and are proud partners of the American Job Center Network. Projects may be funded with the authorized and appropriate use of federal funds. Contact Networks Northwest for additional information. Equal opportunity employer/program. Auxiliary aids and service are available upon request to individuals with disabilities. Individuals with speech or hearing impairments may call the Michigan Relay Center by dialing 711.

## Intro

Are you a permanent resident of Wexford County?

- O I am a permanent resident within Wexford County
- I am a seasonal resident in Wexford County
- I am not a Wexford County resident

Please select the City, Village, or Township you reside in.

- O City of Cadillac
- O City of Manton
- Village of Buckley
- Village of Harrietta
- O Village of Mesick
- O Antioch Township
- O Boon Township
- O Cedar Creek Township
- O Cherry Grove Township
- O Clam Lake Township
- O Colfax Township
- O Greenwood Township
- O Hanover Township
- O Haring Township
- O Henderson Township
- O Liberty Township
- Selma Township
- Slagle Township
- O South Branch Township
- O Springville Township
- O Wexford Township

When I am not in Wexford County, I reside in

If you are not a Wexford County resident, please specify your community of residence.

Please identify your age group.

- O 11 years old and under
- 12 years old to 18
- 19 years old to 30
- O 31 years old to 40
- 41 years old to 50
- 51 years old to 60
- 61 years old to 70
- 71 years old to 80
- 81 years old and up

# **Recreational Activities**

What recreational activities does your household enjoy? Select all that apply.

- Walking
- Hiking
- Running
- 🔲 Biking
- Fishing
- Canoeing
- Kayaking
- Paddle Boarding
- Playground
- Picnicking
- Basketball
- Baseball
- Softball
- Soccer
- Volleyball
- Pickleball

- Tennis
- Skateboarding
- Disc Golf
- Snowshoeing
- Winter Skiing
- Snowmobiling
- Concerts
- Car Shows
- Festivals
- Nature/Wildlife Viewing
- Camping
- Hunting
- Birdwatching
- Golfing
- ATV/ORV/UTV
- Others (Please specify below)

How often do you participate in recreational activity each week?

- O Daily
- O 4-6 times a week
- O 2-3 times a week
- Once a week
- Occasionally
- O Rarely

What is the primary reason for your recreational activity?

- O Physical Health
- O Mental Health
- Socialization

- O Nature
- Athletic Competition
  - Other (please specify)

Are there barriers that prevent you from participating or using Wexford County parks or recreational assets?

- O No, there are no barriers for me to use or participate
- Yes, there are barriers that prevent me from using or participating

If yes, please specify the barriers. As a reminder, this survey does not and will not have identifying information to responses.

What new or expanded recreational opportunities are needed in Wexford County? Please select your top 3.

- Walking
- Hiking
- Running
- Biking
- Fishing
- Canoeing
- Kayaking
- Paddle Boarding
- Playground
- Picnicking
- Basketball
- Baseball
- Softball
- Soccer
- 🗌 Volleyball
- Pickleball
- Tennis
- Skateboarding

- Disc Golf
- Snowshoeing
- Winter Skiing
- Snowmobiling
- Concerts
- Car Shows
- Festivals
- Nature/Wildlife Viewing
- Camping
- Hunting
- Birdwatching
- Golfing
- ATV/ORV/UTV
- Others (Please specify below)

What type of facilities do you think the County could have more of?

- O Natural Areas
- O Facilities for winter activities
- O Facilities for waterfront activities
- O Trails (off-road, unimproved)
- O Trails (hard surface, paved)
- O Facilities for 5-12 year old's
- Facilities for 12-19 year old's
- O Facilities for 60 plus year old's

# **Wexford County Facilities and Parks**

How often do you use the following County recreation facilities?

| 2/23/23, 2:32 PM                         | Qualtrics Survey Software |              |        |       |
|--|---------------------------|--------------|--------|-------|
|  | Often                     | Occasionally | Rarely | Never |
| The Wexford Civic<br>Center              | 0                         | 0            | 0      | 0     |
| Northern District<br>Fairgrounds         | 0                         | 0            | 0      | 0     |
| Pinoco County Park (in<br>Boon Township) | 0                         | 0            | Ο      | 0     |

Which facilities do you or members of your household use at the Wexford Civic Center?

- O Ice Arena
- O Civic Auditorium
- O Fair Grounds
- O Not Applicable
- O Other (Please specify)

Where would you like to see improvements to Wexford County parks?

| The Wexford Civic Center                |
|---|
| Northern District Fairgrounds           |
| Pinoco County Park                      |
| No improvements are needed at this time |
| Other (please specify)                  |

What improvements would you like to see at The Wexford Civic Center?

What improvements would you like to see at the Northern District Fairgrounds?

What improvements would you like to see at Pinoco County Park?

Where do you believe a park could be added to Wexford County? (Heat Map)

# Goals and Objectives, Action Plan

Please select the goals that you support.

- Provide recreation facilities that are available to residents of all ages and abilities, and that are operated on a year-round basis.
- Maintain and improve existing County parks and recreation facilities
- Support and promote Wexford County as a trail destination with an interconnected trail system

Other Goals to Consider (Please specify)

What ways can the County achieve the goal of providing recreation facilities that are available to residents of all ages and abilities, and that are operated on a year-round basis?

What ways can the County maintain and improve existing County parks and recreation facilities?

What ways can the County support and promote Wexford County as a trail destination with an interconnected trail system?

Are there any specific recreation projects you would like the County to consider?

Please provide general comments below on Wexford County Parks and Recreation system, specific facilities, or your ideas on how to improve recreational opportunities.

Please provide your email if you would like a digital copy of the draft Wexford County Parks and Recreation Plan when it is available.